MINUTES

ISLAND HEIGHTS PLANNING BOARD – OCT. 14, 2009
The regular meeting of the Island Heights Planning Board was called to order by Vice-Chairperson Woods at approximately 6:30pm.  Following the flag salute roll call was taken and present were:  Richard Woods, John Bendel, Anne Garvin, Karen Kier, Florence Kernaghan, Elizabeth Leahey, Richard Morrison, and Kim Pascarella, Esq., Jim Stanton, Engineer and Wendy Prior, Secretary.  Absent: Garrett Joest, Brian Hanifin, and Kevin Nelson.  Vice-Chairperson Woods then read the Open Public Meetings announcement.
Motion to approve minutes from Sept. 9, 2009 was made by Ms. Kernaghan second by Ms. Garvin.  Roll Call Vote:
Mr. Woods


Yes


Ms. Kernaghan
Yes

Mr. Bendel


Yes


Ms. Leahey

Abstain

Ms. Garvin


Yes


Mr. Morrison

Yes

Ms. Kier


Abstain

Vice Chairperson Woods introduced Jim Stanton from the firm of O’Donnell, Stanton and Associates.  Vice Chairperson Woods stated we would be starting with the continuation of the Kraus Variance Application for Block 19, Lot 8.  A hearing on August 12, 2009, at that time there were only six members present and Mr. DeVincens requested that the matter be continued.  That was granted.  The matter was not heard at the Sept. 9, 2009 which is indicated in the minutes.  There was some correspondence back and forth with regard to whether or not council would be representing other parties therefore the matter has been continued until today.  In the interim we did get from Mr. DeVincens a written summation as he indicated that he would give to us along with an oral summation.  Vice Chairperson asked Mr. DeVincens that maybe you wish to reopen or how do you wish to proceed today?
Mr. DeVincens:  Well Mr. Woods the problem is that the tape I think obliterated all of Mr. Martin’s testimony.  I am just going to put him on again to go through his testimony so that it is recorded.
Vice Chairperson Woods:  You mean Mr. Thompsons?

Mr. DeVincens: I am sorry we were just talking about it being Will Martin’s old house.  The problem is and I had this discussion with Mr. Pascarella that in the event that this went to an appeal that I don’t think the notes, although they were very extensive and very thorough, would hold up and we decided to put Mr. Thompson back on.  All of Mr. Kraus’ testimony was obtained.

Ms. Prior:  Yes

Mr. DeVincens:  We are just going to put on Mr. Kraus on the stand.  
Mr. Pascarella:  Mr. Thompson.

Mr. DeVincens:  Mr. Thompson.  I will stand with my summation, my written summation.  I have contacted Mr. Sgambati, and he told me that he was going to be represented and then he told me that he wasn’t going to be represented and he confirmed that he was going to be here at the meeting.  I don’t see him here at the meeting so I am not sure if he changed his mind or not.
Ms. Prior:  He stopped in today at lunch time and he was supposed to be coming he wanted to make sure the matter was still on and I told him it was. 

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Well we commence at 6:30pm and it is now 6:38pm so we are going to proceed with our hearing on this.  Mr. DeVincens I will let you proceed with your witness.
Mr. DeVincens:  Okay.  Mr. Thompson I have been calling you Mr. Martin.  

Ms. Prior:  We did get a lot of Mr. Thompson’s testimony.  Where you stopped was when you were questioning about the view. How it would affect the view from the street that is where the tape ended.  Do you want to do the whole thing?

Mr. DeVincens:  I would just as soon do the whole testimony; he is not going to be long.  I presume that the people who were not here for the first meeting listened to the tape?

Ms. Prior:  Yes.

Mr. Pascarella:  I believe, just to confirm, that we have seven voting members here tonight, because the members that were not here in August did listen to the tape?
Ms. Prior:  Yes.  That is correct.

Mr. Pascarella:  We do have the seven members.  Just for the record Mr. Chairman, as you know we had a malfunction with the recording device and just so we have continuity maybe Mr. Thompson go through all his testimony.

Mr. DeVincens:  That is what I intended to do.

Vice Chairperson Woods:  Then I just want to make sure that of the six members that were here last time, five of us are still here, Ms. Garvin and Ms. Leahey you are the two who were not here at the time and my understanding that you will put on the record that you have either listened to the tape or reviewed.
Ms. Leahey:  That is correct.

Ms. Garvin:  Yes

Vice Chairperson Woods:  Mr. Thompson, we will have Mr. Pascarella will swear you in again.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mr. Thompson do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

Mr. Thompson:  Yes it is.

Mr. DeVincens:  Just for the record is the tape working?  
Ms. Prior:  Yes we have a very nice machine this evening.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mr. Chairman do we need Mr. Thompson to be qualified as an expert witness?

Vice Chairperson Woods:  I don’t believe so Mr. Thompson has testified before this board on numerous occasions and we have accepted his qualifications at that time and I believe that we did in fact accept his qualifications at the August meeting. The board would accept his qualifications at this point.

Mr. DeVincens:  Mr. Thompson at some time in the recent past Mr. and Mrs. Kraus came to you to talk to you about the possibility of expanding their existing house.
Mr. Thompson:  Yes they did.
Mr. DeVincens:  Where is their house located at?
Mr. Thompson:  7 Central Ave.
Mr. DeVincens:  Is that house presently on what is commonly classified as an undersized lot?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes it is.
Mr. DeVincens:  What is located on the lot?
Mr. Thompson:  Currently there is a single family dwelling and free standing garage.
Mr. DeVincens:  What zone is the property located in?
Mr. Thompson:  Downtown Business Zone.
Mr. DeVincens:  Could you indicate where in the zone it is located specifically from the intersection of Central Ave. as you go north from River Ave.
Mr. Thompson:  From the intersection of Central as you go north from River Ave. it is the second residence I should say building, on the left which would be the south side of the street.  Excuse me it is the west side of the street.
Mr. DeVincens:  Is it the first house facing Central as you go north from River Ave.
Mr. Thompson:  That is correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Could you please describe the immediate surroundings of this property including both sides of the street.
Mr. Thompson:  Okay.  On the south side of the property there is another residence, the Kempton Residence facing south, River Ave.  Immediately to the north there is another mixed use structure which is both a dwelling and I believe an art school on the first floor.  Adjacent to that going to the north of that is an empty lot.  Across the street, on what would be the east side of Central Ave. closet to River Ave. is a vacant lot now owned by the Toms River Yacht Club.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  I believe it is the Island Heights Yacht Club

Ms. Leahey:  Island Heights.

Mr. Thompson:  What did I say?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  You said Toms River Yacht Club.

Mr. Thompson:  Oh excuse me.

Ms. Leahey:  They are kind of interchangeable.

Mr. Thompson:  Excuse me.  Then there is a single family residence and next to that is what was currently being used until recently as an ice cream shop/deli.  Next to that again heading north is a small building used by Ludlow Thurston as an art gallery.  Next to that I am not a 100% certain whether it is…

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Village Hair Cutter.

Mr. Thompson:   Yes the Village Hair cutter and beyond that is an attorney’s law office.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Mr. Kukfa.

Mr. DeVincens:  You have read the engineering review letter of O’Donnell, Stanton dated July 29, 2009.  Is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes that’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Does that letter cite certain already existing deviations from the zoning code of the Borough of Island Heights?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes it does.
Mr. DeVincens:  Can you numerate those?
Mr. Thompson:  Section 32-5.1b5(a) Minimum lot area 4,750 square foot lot; we have 2407.5 square feet existing.  Section 32-5.1b5(d) requires minimum lot depth of 95 feet; 45 feet is existing.  Section 32-5.1b5(e) requires minimum front setback 25 feet or average of setbacks within 200 feet on the same side of street is required; we have 2.1 feet existing that front setback was further, we did get the average setback from the surveyor Dee Hedges and that was indicated on his updated surveyor as 9.4 feet and again we have 2.1 existing.  Section 32-5.1b5(f)(l) requires minimum rear setback principal building 20 feet required; and 5.2 feet existing.  Section 32-5.1b5(f)(l) requires a setback of an accessory building to be 20 feet; and 2 feet is existing to the garage.  Section 32-51b5(i) permits maximum lot coverage of 40% allowed; and 52% is existing.  Section 32-5.1b5(k) where 5 feet is required to rear setback the deck is detached 20 feet if attached and 12 feet is existing. 

Mr. DeVincens:  Now those are pre-existing conditions is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Will they be in any way increased or exacerbated by the plan that is proposed here this evening?
Mr. Thompson:  No they will not.
Mr. DeVincens:  The O’Donnell, Stanton letter also indicates that this application will create two new variances.  What are those two new variances?
Mr. Thompson:  Section 32-5.1b5(f)(l) where 20 feet is required and two feet proposed.
Mr. DeVincens:  And the second one?
Mr. Thompson:  Section 32-5.1b5(g)(l) where minimum side yard setback to a principal building is 8 feet; 2.7 feet is proposed.  The first one concerns 2 feet to the addition talking about the rear setback of the existing garage that we are building on top off.  The 8 feet on the side yard 2.7 feet is proposed and approximately 1 foot is existing to the second floor deck that is on the other side, the south side of the building.
Mr. DeVincens:  In dealing with the side yard with the principal building is this impacted by the fact that by this connection you are proposing that the garage becomes not an accessory building but principal building?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes in fact the minimum side yard setback does not change from what is currently there.  
Mr. DeVincens:  How about, does that hold true for the rear yard setback?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes that is true.
Mr. DeVincens:  What is the square footage?
Mr. Thompson:  The lot as it exists is 2407.5 square feet.
Mr. DeVincens:  What are the exact dimensions?
Mr. Thompson:  Both front and rear are 45 feet excuse me I take that back, it is 53.5 feet across and depth is 45 feet.

Mr. DeVincens: Is there anyway that the variances that are being requested here this evening could be eliminated by the purchase of additional property? 

Mr. Thompson:  All the adjacent properties are developed and none of it is available for purchase.
Mr. DeVincens:  We discussed front yard averages did we not?

Mr. Thompson:  Yes we did.
Mr. DeVincens:  And is 4.7 feet, 9.4 feet?
Mr. Thompson:  9.4 feet is the average of the buildings within 200 feet on the same side as the street.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now at the last time we interviewed the state sealed survey by Mr. Hedges that didn’t have that on, I presume you still have that but I brought another copy which certifies that average is at the present.  If you want to re-mark this into evidence?
Mr. Pascarella:  What was it marked last time?

Mr. DeVincens:  I do not know.

Vice-Chairperson:  Can we mark it A1 then for tonight?

Mr. DeVincens:  I didn’t see it in the notes.

Ms. Prior:  I don’t remember us marking it in.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright.  Let us have it marked in as part of the record then.  Have you got a copy of that Mr. DeVincens?

Mr. DeVincens:  I do.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Then pass it up, just mark it as A1 and we will give it to the secretary.  That is Mr. Hedges' survey?        
Mr. DeVincens:  It is the old survey which is just marked on it what the 9.4 averaging is to the properties within 200 feet.
Mr. DeVincens:  Mr. Thompson how many square feet of living space are there in the present first floor.

Mr. Thompson:  774 square feet.
Mr. DeVincens:  If this plan is approved how many square feet of living space will be on the first floor.
Mr. Thompson:  There will still, be it will remain 774 square feet.
Mr. DeVincens:  So there will be no change?
Mr. Thompson:  That is correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  How many square feet of living space are there on the existing second floor of the house.
Mr. Thompson:  The existing second floor is 894 square feet.

Mr. DeVincens:  If this plan is approved how many square feet will there be on the second floor of the house?
Mr. Thompson:  With the additional space there will be a total of 1328 square feet.
Mr. DeVincens:  That is the total square foot of the house as it is proposed?
Mr. Thompson:  That is correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Are we any way increasing or decreasing the front yard setback of this property?
Mr. Thompson:  No we are not.
Mr. DeVincens:  We are not changing it in any way?
Mr. Thompson:  No.
Mr. DeVincens:  The addition that is proposed is a roof structure enclosing, above an open space beneath?  Correct?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes.  What we are doing we are adding a second floor above the existing garage and there is a second floor connection between the existing residence and the addition above the garage.
Mr. DeVincens:  The existing second floor and what is proposed above the garage.
Mr. Thompson:  That is correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Okay. So on the ground there is no additional structure being proposed.
Mr. Thompson:  No there is not.
Mr. DeVincens:  Could you please indicate the room count and types of rooms that are in the house.
Mr. Thompson:  Sure.  The existing first floor which remains unchanged is common living space; kitchen, living room, dining room and restroom.  The second floor currently contains a sitting room, two bedrooms and a bath.  The one bedroom is a large room it’s across the back of the building and that’s going to be modified as indicated in the plans.  So that becomes smaller and we are adding a little bit of space of this connected area on the second floor that goes over the garage to create two bedrooms and then there will be a sitting room/guest room above the existing garage.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now the garage is set back from the street is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That is correct.  The garage itself begins roughly halfway back from the existing, front of the existing structure.  So it is considerably setback from the street.
Mr. DeVincens:  You have not changed that location from the front property line to the garage line is that correct? 
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Did you purposely do that for a reason?
Mr. Thompson:  Well, there was consideration given to the residence to the north side  because they do have views of the river from their front porch area closest to the street.  The Kraus’ in discussion about designs it was their intention not to block those views down Central Ave. towards the river.
Mr. DeVincens:  Will the front, rear and side yard setbacks of the garage as of now exist  continue to be the same?
Mr. Thompson:  They will remain as is.
Mr. DeVincens:  Will the rear, side and front yard setbacks of the house continue, of the existing house continue to be the same?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes they will.
Mr. DeVincens:  There will be absolutely no change in the dimensional, the dimensional deviations that have been cited in O’Donnell, Stanton’s letter?  
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  As an architect you have a working familiarity with the Municipal Land Use of the State of New Jersey?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes I have a working knowledge.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now in O’Donnell, Stanton’s letter they cited the following as it relates to testimony that they would require concerning NJS 40:55d-70c1 and 70c2.  That states in order to, the letter says in order to prove either the hardship or flexible c variance the applicant for variance must prove:  1.  That the variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good; 2.  Will not substantially impair the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinances in this specific case the Borough of Island Heights.  Can you please address these as it relates to the Downtown Business Zone of the Borough and the existence of the house on the property.
Mr. Thompson:  The Downtown Business Zone specifically permits single family residence as part of its uses.  So in that sense it is consistent with the current zone.  Therefore there is no variance required for that use and probably the least intensive use of any of the allowable uses within that zone.  Simply because it is the Downtown Business Zone which is everything from dry cleaners to haberdasher and repair shops and different sorts that could be put there.  Residential use is probably the least invasive allowed in that zone in terms of the neighboring properties as they currently exist.
Mr. DeVincens:  A single family house is absolutely permitted in the zone?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes it is.
Mr. DeVincens:  Okay and were here for bulk variances and not for use variances is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now, one of the proofs again as cited in the O’Donnell, Stanton’s letter is the negative criteria.  The negative criteria consists of two prongs.  The first prong is can the variances requested here this evening be granted without detriment to the Zoning Plan of the Borough.
Mr. Thompson:  Yes it can.
Mr. DeVincens:  The second one is, the second prong is can it be granted without substantial detriment to the public good.
Mr. Thompson:  It certainly doesn’t represent any detriment to the public good.  I think it is an improvement to both this dwelling and therefore an improvement to the adjacent structures as well, the adjacent properties.
Mr. DeVincens:  Again, what is implicated in the Municipal Land Use Law is the fact that special reasons are considered a necessity in approving a “d” variance under the statue.  Now as it is required by the Municipal Land Use, special reasons are defined under the purposes of zoning, which I will not bore you with, but it’s under 40:55d2.  As it relates to that, could you indicate to me what you feel that this addition would do as it relates to conserving the character of the neighborhood and the value of surrounding properties.
Mr. Thompson:  It is certainly an improvement, an upgrade to what is currently there although it doesn’t in anyway detract from that structure or its history or its presence there on the street.  It is generally taking that existing building and its history and upgrading it and providing aesthetic improvement to the street front.  It certainly fits the character of the neighborhood.  Again, we are not adding any additional ground coverage that may somehow create secondary issues.
Mr. DeVincens:  How about light air and open space, it is always a question that comes up.  Is this roof line going to be any higher than the properties to the north and to the south?
Mr. Thompson:  No it is not.
Mr. DeVincens:  Did you take also into consideration the neighboring property to the north?  Are there any windows on the addition that will face that property to the north?
Mr. Thompson:  There are no additional windows in this proposed dwelling that will face that house.
Mr. DeVincens:  One of the other purposes of the zoning is to maintain adequate population densities.  Does this in anyway change the density of that property?
Mr. Thompson:  My understanding of the definition of density, no it does not increase the density it is still a single family dwelling.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now I understand that you have done these plans, one of the purposes of zoning is creative design and technique.  What would you feel this house would contribute as it relates to that?  Do you believe it is an aesthetic improvement?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes I do.
Mr. DeVincens:  You’re not prejudiced?
Mr. Thompson:  Well I try not to be but I think it was a very nice solution to what is a difficult site.  It does not restrict the outdoor space, the use around the existing house.  The limited yard area that is there remains yet it provides for an unimposing expansion of this existing structure.
Mr. DeVincens:  Under the Municipal Land Use Law there is a positive criteria which is directly tied into the property and is defined as a hardship.  This property is already undersized is that not correct? 
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  Your testimony was that you could not do anything that would increase the size of the property?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  And the house is already existing on this property?
Mr. Thompson:  Yes it is.
Mr. DeVincens:  And you designed this to be the least intrusive way in order to comply with additional living space for the Kraus’ is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That was what we tried to do, yes.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now, if you were to take all the setback variances in the Borough, that pertain to this zone in the Borough of Island Heights, what size footprint can you get on this house?  Get on this lot?
Mr. Thompson:  I believe, let me clarify what you are asking me.  If I were to take all of the setbacks as they are written for that zone what size structure would I be able to build on that lot as it exists.  I believe that is zero.  Inasmuch as the lot depth of 45 feet and 20 foot rear setback and a 20 foot front yard setback and so basically it would be unbuildable.
Mr. DeVincens: You will have to take my word for this.  On a c1 variance personal hardship is not a hardship that is recognized by the case law or the Municipal Land Use.  However the c2 variance which is the variance where the board does the weighing as to  the benefits as opposed to the deviation, benefits as opposed to the detriments of the granting of this variance. The c2 personal hardship under that personal hardship be considered.  Now in your design of this, you have indicated that it is a minimal expansion.  Does this fulfill the needs of the Kraus’ for their growing family, consisting of three boys which was testified to at the last hearing without imposing any detriment on the surrounding neighborhood. 
Mr. Thompson:  That was my intention and I believe it does, yes.
Mr. DeVincens:  Now in addition to that at the hearing there was some questions concerning runoff.  Could you address that to the board again?
Mr. Thompson:  I don’t remember the specific question however in terms of runoff usually talking about displacement on the property you are talking about impervious surface and the addition of impervious surface.  In this case because we are just basically building over the footprint of the existing garage with a second floor connective element, there is no reduction in impervious surface on the lot.  Certainly there is a slight change in the pattern in which the rain water will eventually reach the grade but there is no reduction and therefore no additional runoff from that lot based on closed construction.
Mr. DeVincens:  Will there be any air conditioning units on the north side of this addition?
Mr. Thompson:  No there will not.  Let me just clarify that.  There are ac units on the north side of the existing residence which will remain in place but they will not be put to the north side of the garage.
Mr. DeVincens:  Garage side.
Mr. Thompson:  or on that property line.
Mr. DeVincens:  Okay. Now also as the ordinance is written in the Borough of Island Heights, side yard setbacks are 8 and 0, is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That is what I understand, yes.
Mr. DeVincens:  So you could actually put the garage and the addition on that other lot line if you had 8 feet on the southerly lot line.  
Mr. Thompson:  That’s true.  There is no expectation of anything greater than 0 in that zone because these zoning permits a 0 lot line.

Mr. DeVincens:  So it could be either on the north or the south side?

Mr. Thompson:  Yes if we did have 8 feet from the Kempton’s side then it would be permissible to build without a setback on the north side of the property.

Mr. DeVincens:  I have no further questions.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Does any member of the board have any questions of Mr. Thompson?

Mr. Morrison:  I have some questions.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright Mr. Morrison.

Mr. Morrison:  Mr. Thompson, you are a local fellow, I am wondering whether when the Kraus’ came to you with this project, you knew that a previous owner of this property had come to this board with this same proposal and had been denied.
Mr. Thompson:  I am not familiar with what was proposed, no.
Mr. DeVincens:  I do not believe it was denied.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  The applicant withdrew a portion of its request to this board with regard to that and this board never ruled on that issue.

Mr. Morrison:  Mr. Chairman, my recollection is that Mr. Harker was advised that if he withdrew that part of the request he would get all these other variances that he obtained at the time, the seven that exist now.  Is that your recollection?
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  I remember reading the resolution of the Harker application two months ago when we were here I know our secretary had a copy of that resolution.  It was only by re-reading that resolution that I had any memory of that application at all to be honest.

Ms. Prior:  I have a copy right here.

Mr. DeVincens:  Well I got a copy of that resolution also Mr. Morrison just to answer your question.  There was nothing in that that indicated that there was any trade off.  As a matter of fact a trade off what is known as zoning by contract which is absolutely not permitted in the state of New Jersey.  So there is nothing in there that leads me to answer your question  very clearly but you did not ask me you asked him.
Mr. Morrison:  Well you are absolutely right we did not deny it formally.  That part is true.  But there was in that application an application to put in a second story on that garage that did not happen.  Now Mr. Thompson have you measured the distance between the north side of the garage and the northerly neighbor’s wall?
Mr. Thompson:  I was out at the site and it’s interesting and the neighbor was out measuring just exactly that.  He had a tape measure.  But I did not measure specifically to the house.
Mr. Morrison:  Well if I suggested that maybe it is 9 feet would that sound right to you?

Mr. Thompson:  That would sound right.

Mr. Morrison:  Now putting a second floor on that wall it is not your testimony that it would not have any affect on air light or open space of the neighbor?
Mr. Thompson:  I am not saying everything has an affect but based on the proximity of the garage and its distance back from the street and where the house on the northerly property sits in relation to the street which is actually very close to the road. I’d say were probably, it sits at least, I’m saying this from memory, it sits about halfway back on that property.  So, you know.  That would be my perception that we’re certainly not flanking that side of that property.
Mr. Morrison:  Look, you’re not testifying here that putting that wall up would have no detrimental affect on the neighbors are you? 
Mr. Thompson:  Detrimental?  I am not sure what you mean by what you feel is detrimental.
Mr. Morrison:  As far as their view of the river, the amount of light that can come in there, the amount of air that circulates.
Mr. Thompson:  There are very few windows impacted, like on the second floor there is maybe one window that was actually directly impacted it certainly will not affect their view of the river.
Mr. Morrison:  From that window it would right?

Mr. Thompson:  From one rear window, yes.

Mr. DeVincens:  No.  If you will remember…

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Hold on hold on. Wait a minute.  Mr. Thompson.

Mr. Thompson:  I mean I say there are two windows on that side of the second floor and perhaps the rear of the second window may be impacted depending on the angle.  Now in terms of air 9 feet is not exactly, it’s not like, a lot of air can move in 9 feet. 

Mr. Morrison:  its 9 feet.

Mr. Thompson:  It’s 9 feet.

Mr. Morrison:  Right. Not 10 or 8.

Mr. Thompson:  Not 8, not 10, no.

Mr. DeVincens:  Let me just, Mr. Morrison, I don’t want to interrupt but Mr. Sgambati introduced photographs at the last hearing looking out of both of the second floor windows and neither of those second floor windows without the addition could you see the river.  The only view that he has of the river is on the front deck of the second floor where he can absolutely see the river now and he will absolutely be able to see the river if this addition is put on.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Mr. DeVincens you are arguing now and I think we want to try to keep this…

Mr. DeVincens:  No no no, I am not arguing I am just saying the pictures, the pictures were introduced.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  I would like to keep the questions to Mr. Thompson alright.  Mr. Morrison go ahead.

Mr. Morrison:  I don’t think I have any other questions.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  I do.  I just want to make certain to clarify certain things on the record as I understand them.  Mr. Thompson I know that you reviewed the zoning ordinances for the Downtown Business Area and I believe your testimony was that side yard setbacks on either side could be 8 foot and 0 foot.  Is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  If this building were demolished and something new were built, am I correct in saying that a use could be put up that would be right on the property line to the north of this property?

Mr. Thompson:  Yes it could.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  And the front setback I think you testified from Mr. Hedges calculations that he had done based upon the 200 feet limit could be as much distance as 9.4 feet back.  Is that correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.

Vice-Chairperson Woods: So, anyone building, if they wanted to start fresh on this building on this lot could put up something directly on the lot line and only 9.4 foot back in the setback on the northeast corner of that property, is that correct? 
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright.  I think you testified as the Downtown Business Area that there could be certain things, I think you said dry cleaners, and repair shops and that type of thing, so anybody that wanted to buy that property could put up that type of use there on that size of a lot, is that correct? 
Mr. Thompson:  That is my understanding under the current zone.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright. I just want to make that clear.  Any other questions from members of the board.  I would like to say to the people that came in a little bit late when we got started so that they understanding what we are doing here.  We did have a problem with the tape last time.  Certain portions of Mr. Thompson’s testimony were recorded but Mr. DeVincens on behalf of the applicant and Mr. Pascarella on behalf of the board agreed that it would be best to bring back Mr. Thompson to testify in full so that there would be a clear record of his testimony for the board with the tape that we have down here.  That being said, Mr. Thompson has given his direct testimony and we have had some questions from the board.  You are entitled, as Mr. Joest told you last time, if you wish to cross examine Mr. Thompson which means ask him questions as to his testimony.  Mr. DeVincens?
Mr. DeVincens:  Mr. Chairman just for the people who were not here.  These are the four testimonies O1, four pictures O1 through O4, which Mr. Sgambati put into evidence showing the views from the windows and showing the view in between the properties.  
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  So if Ms. Leahey and Ms. Garvin want to take a look at those.  Or even anybody that was here before.  Mr. Pascarella do you have any other comments?

Mr. Pascarella:  No I don’t.  I just want to make sure, did you hear that Mr. Sgambati?  I noticed…

Mr. Sgambati:  Yes I did hear that and I do have something to say about that if I am able to when the time is right.

Mr. Pascarella:  Yes and I think your time may be now unless anybody else from the board has any questions.

Mr. Sgambati:  Is that ok?

Mr. Pascarella:  Yes

Mrs. Sgambati:  Can I go first?

Mr. Pascarella:  You can come forward.  I want to make sure, let me just want to confirm with our secretary, was Mr. Sgambati’s testimony also….
Ms. Prior:  Gone.

Mr. Pascarella:  Let me explain to you what happened if you want to come up.  

Mr. Sgambati:  She wants to come up.

Mr. Pascarella:  You want to come up, that’s fine, Mrs. Sgambati.
Mrs. Sgambati:  Can I do that?

Mr. Pascarella:  Sure. Unfortunately due to a defect in the recording device we lost all of the recording of Mr. Thompson’s testimony, your cross examination questions of Mr. Thompson and anything that you had, any other comments that you had.  So we basically to preserve the record we need to have that re-done.
Mrs. Sgambati:  Sure.

Mr. Pascarella:  So we are continuing.  So now would be your opportunity not to testify but to ask Mr. Thompson questions first.  Do you have any questions of Mr. Thompson?

Mrs. Sgambati:   No but can I make a statement?

Mr. Pascarella:  You can but you have no questions of Mr. Thompson?

Mrs. Sgambati:  No I really don’t.

Mr. Pascarella:  Okay.  So the next item, Mr. DeVincens is there any other applicant’s testimony?

Mr. DeVincens:  No I presume that Mr. Kraus’ testimony was entirely captured on tape?

Ms. Prior:  That’s fine.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Yes it was.

Mr. Pascarella:  The applicant is done with their application and you have no questions of their witnesses.
Mrs. Sgambati:  No.

Mr. Pascarella:  Now is your opportunity to make a statement.  First we have to swear you in.  First can you give your full name and address for the record.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Elaine Sgambati, 9 Central Ave. Island Heights.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mrs. Sgambati do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

Mrs. Sgambati:  Yes I do. 

Mr. Pascarella:  Okay you may make your statement.

Mrs. Sgambati:  I have written my statement down so I would not forget anything. 

Mr. Pascarella:  Sure.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Okay.  Besides the many I think it is nine zoning ordinances the Kraus’ are violating, the addition would stop the air from circulating around our house.  Especially our bedroom who’s only two windows look out towards the Kraus’ house.  It would also stop the effectiveness of our window air conditioners and take away our light as well as the value of our property.  Also we would look out our bedroom windows to a wall that would be staring us in the face instead of the beautiful airy atmosphere we have enjoyed for 15 years that attracted us to the place in the first place.  From a life safety perspective according to the objections of the board members in 2001 for a similar request by the Harker’s the addition could be a fire hazard, since there’s only a narrow alley between the properties.  The variance was strongly denied for all those reasons.  We are grateful that one of your board members came to our house and looked out our bedroom windows to see first hand what a bad overall effect an addition would have on us.  And we thank him for his time.  That’s all I have to say.
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Mr. DeVincens do you have any questions of Mrs. Sgambati?

Mr. DeVincens:  No but I would have a statement just at the end.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Does any member of the board have any questions of Mrs. Sgambati?

Mr. Pascarella:  Mrs. Sgambati  you just need to step…..

Mrs. Sgambati:  Oh, okay.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Does any board members have any questions of Mrs. Sgambati?

Ms. Leahey:  Elaine, I just have one quick one.  From the pictures that I just saw that you brought last time it doesn’t look like you could see the river from your windows. 

Mrs. Sgambati:  I do.

Ms. Leahey: Just from the pictures it doesn’t look like it lets you see one.

Mrs. Sgambati:  I didn’t do way.
Ms. Leahey:  To begin with.

Mr. Sgambati:  You have the pictures, Elaine.

Ms. Leahey:  We just saw them.

Mr. Sgambati:  Oh you just saw them.

Ms. Leahey:  Are there more we didn’t see?

Mrs. Sgambati:  We brought a lot of pictures….
Ms. Leahey:  You are saying that 9 feet was not enough do know that there is 8 foot set yards setbacks and side setbacks in most parts of town?  9 feet is a foot more than most people get in this town.
Mrs. Sgambati:  But it is not enough.  They only have 2.4, 6 inches of their property to ours.  Ours is the rest of that amount.  

Ms. Leahey:  I am not sure that understand what you just said.

Mrs. Sgambati:  From their garage to our property they have 2 feet 6 inches.

Ms. Leahey:  But they are not going to increase that by their addition.

Mrs. Sgambati:  But the setbacks

Ms. Leahey:  The footprint is not going to move over any.  I think what they were trying to say before is that given the use that they could do if someone were to start from scratch they could build right up to the property line.  As it stands you still have, there is not going to be any more physical space taken up by the structure.

Mrs. Sgambati:  No.

Ms. Leahey:  I was a little confused about what you said about air conditioners, how is it going to make an air conditioner work less effectively.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Because there is a wall in front of our, now there is a wall

Ms. Leahey:  But air conditioners take air in and cool it once it’s in your house you’re not bringing cool air in, that’s why I am confused about that.
Mrs. Sgambati:  We would never have the same thing that we have right now.

Ms. Leahey:  But that’s mostly view.

Mrs. Sgambati:  The air, the light, no not even the view.

Mr. Sgambati:  That’s a window unit.

Mrs. Sgambati:  They are window units.

Ms. Leahey:  Right, no, I understand that.  

Mrs. Sgambati: If there is a wall in front how do you get that air back in there again?  How do I see outside my window and see light and air and space?  I’ll see a wall in front of me.  That is like so, I can’t believe this is happening.  I really can’t.
Ms. Leahey:  But how is air, I guess my question is, maybe I wasn’t clear enough how is air affected when you are cooling your house by an air conditioner you are not using air from the outside really.  You are cooling air.
Mrs. Sgambati:  That is not the way that it comes in?

Ms. Leahey:  Well it doesn’t come in ice cold when it is 95 degrees out.  It gets cooled that’s what I am saying, it gets cooled in your house.  Because the air space will still be there, if they were moving the structure over I would understand what you’re saying,

Mrs. Sgambati:  Right.

Ms. Leahey:  but they are not moving the footprint over.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Right.

Ms. Leahey:  so how does that affect an air conditioner unit, that’s what I don’t understand.

Mrs. Sgambati:  I just think it is right in front of our face.

Ms. Leahey:  Okay, alright that’s a different objection, I just wanted to be clear.  That’s all.

Mr. Pascarella:  If I can just ask one question.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Sure.

Mr. Pascarella:  What would you find less desirable, Mrs. Sgambati, if they conformed with the zoning requirements that are allowed.  I think you heard the testimony where the Island Heights zoning requirements allow them to build right to their property line with zero setback conforming with the other structures if they were to start from scratch.  Would you find that less desirable than what they’re doing now which is keeping the setback and just building up on it.

Mrs. Sgambati:  I am not understanding that.

Mr. Pascarella:  Well in other words there has been testimony that under the Island Heights zoning laws they can take the building down completely and rebuild and on your side build right to the property line with zero set back straight up to the height allowance.  Would you find that more or less desirable than what you have now or what is proposed?
Mrs. Sgambati:  Oh I thought that if they took the building down they would have to adhere to the new zoning.

Mr. Pascarella:  Yes and that is zero setback as I understand it maybe Mr. Stanton…

Mrs. Sgambati:  Zero?  

Ms. Leahey:  It’s worst that is what I was trying to tell you.

Mr. Pascarella:  Yes.

Ms. Leahey:  Yes

Mr. Pascarella:  That’s what I think has the board a little perplexed.

Mrs. Sgambati: Wow.

Mr. Pascarella:  Under the existing law, alright, if they were to take that building down altogether they could potentially build right to the property line, and straight up so it would be even closer, I think it is a 9 feet setback now?

Ms. Leahey:  8 foot actually.

Mr. Pascarella:  What is the existing building?

Ms. Leahey:  I think it is 9 right now.

Mr. Pascarella:  9 feet.  
Ms. Leahey:  9 feet.

Mr. Pascarella:  You have the existing 9 foot setback from your property right now but imagine if they took everything down and built it from scratch right to the property line.

Mrs. Sgambati:  It is only an extra two feet.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Let’s make sure the record.

Mrs. Sgambati:  That’s all we are talking about.  

Vice-Chairperson Woods: I am sorry Kim.

Mrs. Sgambati:  What difference would that make?

Vice-Chairperson Woods: I want to make sure that the record is clear that and I am looking now at Mr. Thompson’s existing conditions and site plan first page here.  The area of the new second story there is 2.7 feet to the property line.

Mr. Pascarella:  9 feet total.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Total, exactly right.

Mr. Pascarella:  So in other words it is an existing 2 feet on their side with the existing building, but if they were take everything down and rebuild it, as I understand and maybe the board’s engineer could confirm it that if they were to have 8 feet on one side they could have zero on your side so even 2 feet closer.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  One thing, if I may ask, your building is 2 1/2 stories is that correct?

Mrs. Sgambati:  Yes it is.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  The addition that would be sought to be put on here is only a second story so it wouldn’t be as high as your building is that correct?

Mrs. Sgambati:  Yes but if you came to my house and looked out of my bedroom window you would see what a terrible devastating thing this would do to us.

Mr. Sgambati:  We had a year or two ago, we had piano lessons but things flattened out that first year.  I feel that if I was a contractor, would I want to knock this down?  No, no.  So that was a small statement to present to me.  I just want them to know.  I also have a document with a survey, I have that survey with me if you would like it you welcome to see it, if you would like.  Two inches, two inches, two inches, is my, two inches is all I have.  Two feet.  This is impossible.  

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  I don’t understand what you are talking about with that Mr. Sgambati.  

Mr. Sgambati:  Oh I am sorry.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  You are two inches or two feet from where?  What?

Mr. Sgambati:  On the north side.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  On the north side.

Mr. Sgambati:  Property line.  On the north side property line.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Your property line, you’re two inches from the property line, your building?   
Mr. Sgambati:  No their building, is two inches, their building.

Mr. Pascarella:  I think the testimony was two feet.

Ms. Leahey:  Two feet.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  2.7 feet.

Mr. Sgambati:  I have the survey, I’ll show it to you, council, before we leave but let me continue.  

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright.

Mr. Sgambati:  Ok I get back to that fire business.  And someone spoke, he says, and with that small opening and if were not there and their not there, I am there year in and year out.  He certainly deserves having a house down in south Jersey, I am not knocking that at all.  But suppose sometimes they are not there and I am not there and a fire comes along.  I have the fire dept. in my building every year and I also embrace him for saying put some lights in at night so that you have a backup light.  I do everything that I can.  I like Island Heights an awfully lot.  So I think that my life is in there.  Like they say.   So I know that if someone sees that I have lost $100,000.  You want to do something to give us less taxes?  Taxes then and all that other stuff?  I just have to be that way only because I thank people like you really here that is what this government is all about we have people that come out of your house and do a lot of things for people so I want to keep that feeling about everything that should be done.  Especially when I have been here for 15 years and he is here a couple of years.  He deserves to know what he is going at.  I am not saying that’s what this all about.  (Unable to understand)   And then you people can make the judgment and you can do well judgments because this is your business and you know what you are talking about.  So I think anything else I think we said we do have that survey that we can show it to you and I think she showed you some more photos.  I know you will do the most fairest thing for everybody.
Mr. Pascarella:  If you do have that now would be the time to bring it up.

Mr. Sgambati:  I do have it yes.
Unknown voice:  We certainly have a certified survey (multiple voices) aware of

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  We already had Mr. Hedges survey marked as A1.  
Mr. Pascarella:  Mr. Sgambati you can give it

Mr. Sgambati:  Yes yes I will give it to you in a minute.  I will just face the right way it is…this faces, here I didn’t even write that, that was done when they did this in 2001.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Have that marked as O, we do already have O1-4 for the photos is that correct?

Ms. Prior:  Correct.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright.  Can we have that O5 so we just have that part of the record Mr. Sgambati.

Mr. Sgambati:  You have all the other photos?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  We already have the photos.

Mr. Sgambati:  Oh you have them.  Yeah sure.
Ms. Leahey:  We have them as evidence.
Mr. Sgambati:  I understand sure.

Mr. Pascarella:  The north side, we are going to have this marked in a second but while I have you here Mr. Sgambati.  The north side is where were interested in right?  Tax lot number?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  No it would be the south side of his property.

Mr. Sgambati: This is the garage.  This is the garage.

Mrs. Sgambati:  The south side.

Mr. Pascarella:  Which is the side that your property is on?

Mr. Sgambati:  This is my side right there.

Mrs. Sgambati:  The south side.

Mr. Pascarella: And are you saying this is 2 inches?

Mr. Sgambati:  Yea well it says 2.7 

Mr. Pascarella:  Yes well it is 2.7 feet.

Mr. Sgambati:  Yes it is 2.7 feet.  Not inch, I didn’t mean inch.  

Mr. Pascarella:  Okay

Mr. Sgambati:  I am sorry.

Mr. Pascarella:  There is a big difference between inches and feet.

Mr. Sgambati:  Little higher than 3 feet, you can see how it slants.

Mr. Pascarella: Right, yup.  We are interested in the lowest part.  But you do acknowledge that it’s 2.7 feet.
Mr. Sgambati:  I do.  I acknowledge that.

Mr. Pascarella:  You had us all excited that there was something different.
Mr. Sgambati:  No, no, I am sorry.  There is something else about what strikes my mind (unable to understand)  that was the important part where they had a different number (unable to understand)

Mr. Pascarella:  Can I just ask one question?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Sure, please.

Mr. Pascarella:  The board is listening to your concerns about fire safety and all that.  You understand the existing building is not moving anywhere?  So in other words that your concerns would stay the same the way it is right now

Mr. Sgambati:  Sure.

Mr. Pascarella: Do you understand what I had asked Mrs. Sgambati earlier?  If this were to be rebuilt under the existing ordinances that this property can be built right to the property line?  Making it even more

Mr. Sgambati:  Is that relevant?  I mean if this is going to be here.

Mr. Pascarella: Well I just want to ask you about that and what your feeling is?

Mr. Sgambati:  I feel it would be a foolish venture right now with what’s going on in the world.  
Mr. Pascarella:  We can’t concern ourselves with the economy or
Mr. Sgambati:  No I know that.

Mr. Pascarella:  That would be the property owners.
Mr. Sgambati:  It affect us it affects everybody who has a business.

Mr. Pascarella:  Maybe we should have this marked.  I don’t know if anyone else has a question.

Mr. Sgambati:  Thank you so much.  I hope I didn’t sound brash.

Mr. Pascarella:  Nope not at all.

Mr. Pascarella:  Before you leave maybe somebody else has a question on the board?

Ms. Leahey:  Anybody else?

Mr. Sgambati:  Sure.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Let me just, so Mr. DeVincens knows what we are talking about what we have here.  This is a survey prepared by Hedges and Associates and it was certified to Mr. Harker back on July 11, 2000 is the date of the survey.  It’s a location survey on that property.  Do you want to take a look at it?

Mr. DeVincens:  I believe the 2.7 feet I had a feeling he was looking at the inch sign as a foot sign.  The 2.7 feet absolutely coincides with the variance that we have made as A1.  

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Right. Alright.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mr. DeVincens do you have any questions of Mr. Sgambati?

Mr. DeVincens:  No but I do have, Mr. Thompson I want a reverse summation statement.
Ms. Leahey:  You can tell him to sit down.

Mr. Pascarella:  You can certainly sit down even if somebody had a question.  But does anybody on the board have any questions?
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Mr. Sgambati one thing before we ask a question is that if you don’t mind what we’ll do is have our secretary make a copy of this so that we’ll have it for our record and then we will give this back to you.

Mr. Sgambati:  Can I ask one more question?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  What you are giving me here…

Mr. Sgambati:  Not a question but what I meant, sorry go ahead

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Okay.  This is attached to an application that Mr. Harker made to this board back in, is it 01 and you got a copy of that notice by being next door and you were present and aware of the application that Mr. Harker was putting in.
Mr. Sgambati:  Sure.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  At that time.  Is that correct?

Mr. Sgambati:  Sure.  That’s true.

Mr. Bendel:  01?

Ms. Garvin:  Yes 01.

Mr. Bendel:  That far back?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  That’s the date of the, May 9, 2001 it was on the agenda.

Mr. DeVincens:  Resolution is 01.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Okay.

Mr. Sgambati:  So one more one more question.

Mr. Bendel:  I must be older than I thought.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  So actually, hold on Mr. Sgambati I just want to make sure that we have everything on the record straight.  You would, you have a copy of that application on file.  Alright.  We already have a copy of this so we can give this back to you.

Mr. Sgambati:  You are welcome to that. 

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  We don’t have to make a copy of that.  I just want the record to reflect that exactly what the document is.

Mr. Sgambati:  Sure.  Can I have one more question that I would like to ask the council?

Mr. Pascarella:  The chairman.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Sure.  Go ahead.
Mr. Pascarella:  He knows everything.

Mr. Sgambati:   I am sorry I know we have to have a chairperson.  Please forgive me.  First you are handling all this stuff and we thank you again for that.  But anyway, going back to Harker in 2001, was there a rule that if you were done doing this what we did in 2001 who, who handles that?  Is it the County that you live in?  Or is it this town? Or is it you people?  Or how does that work?
Mr. Pascarella:  Maybe I will take a shot at that.

Mr. Sgambati:  Did you hear that one?

Mr. Pascarella:  Do you mean who rules on zoning requests for variances and such?

Mr. Sgambati:  I did not mean that, when they, but there is a word, I am not a lawyer but there is a friend lawyer who says there is something

Mrs. Sgambati:   res adjudicata
Mr. Pascarella:  Okay there’s your question.

Mr. Sgambati:  Don’t you know why I married that lady.

Mr. Pascarella:  To answer your question if this board had already ruled had a vote on a particular subject involving this property or a particular application then that would be res adjudicata.  I wasn’t here at the time I think we were commenting that we were kids at the time.  The answer is, what I understand, what is part of this application was not voted on at that meeting.  So therefore it is not res adjudicata if it had been voted on in the entire application then you may have a point.  But as I understand it, it was not voted on.
Mr. Sgambati:  It was a point but we can not claim it, is what you are saying.

Ms. Leahey:  Right.

Mr. Pascarella:  It was never put to this board as a vote, for a vote.

Mr. Sgambati:  But can I finish the part of that question, you gave me that part, we couldn’t do anything with that right then cause of the law.  My question was that if it was done once, who has the ability to say it was done once why should this man; 15 years have to do it again.

Mr. Pascarella:  This board would have that ability.

Mr. Sgambati:  Yes.

Mr. Pascarella:  This board would rule that but as I understand it, it was not put to a vote. So this board has never ruled on that particular issue so therefore the application is free to make an application before this board to request the relief grant.
Mr. Bendel:  And that application was different from this application in many ways.
Mr. Pascarella:  That would be the next step.

Mr. Sgambati:  Well I think the differences I found out they said Mr. Sgambati don’t even let them put that kitchen in; don’t even let them put the other thing.  I said no I don’t want to stop that.  I said, he says you were too liberal.  That is the word one of your people told me too liberal.  Too liberal. 

Mr. Pascarella:  Well, I think you got your answer.

Mr. Sgambati:  Yea, okay.  Thank you.

Mr. Pascarella:  I don’t think anybody else has a question for you.

Mr. Sgambati:  I may not be able to say that I have that right but I’m just not saying that to you

Mr. Pascarella:  You raise a valid point.

Mr. Sgambati:  I am not saying this is what you should do you people have to do what you think is best with the two people that are here.

Mr. Pascarella:  That have different opinions.

Mr. Sgambati:  Different opinions, so I think that is the most important thing tonight that I came for that the fair thing will be done.   That’s how I feel.  And I thank you all really.  You have given me a little more than you should have.
Ms. Leahey:  That’s okay.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Thank you very much.

Mr. DeVincens:  Mr. Woods, before I call George back do you want to take the other statements so in case I have to address it?  

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Are there any other with regard to Mr. Thompson’s testimony?  Mr. Kempton you testified before but we will allow you if you want to comment upon it.
Mr. Kempton:  Some people didn’t, it may be blanked out.

Ms. Prior:  I don’t think it is on the record because that would have been after George’s testimony.

Mr. DeVincens:  One of the problems was I don’t think it was picked up.

Ms. Leahey:  No it’s not.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Okay so Mr. Kempton so that was part of it that was lost.  You are starting fresh now so get sworn in and start all over again.

Mr. Pascarella:  Can you please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Kempton:  Terrence P. Kempton, 76 River Ave. Island Heights.

Mr. Pascarella:  If you could raise your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

Mr. Kempton:  I do.

Mr. Pascarella:  You may speak.

Mr. Kempton:  I believe that granting this variance is a win for everybody concerned.    

1.  I get to keep great neighbors.  2.  We do not have another commercial entity in a place where there is no parking for that.  3.  It is going to upgrade our whole area and raise the value of the properties, the adjacent properties. I know the Sgambati’s property has been for sale on and off.  And by keeping it or by this upgrade the value of their property should go way up. I mean it puts confidence in that area it makes people think hey this is the place to be.  You know we have had some turnover; the area has been pretty blighted recently and were getting somebody to lock into a nice piece of residential property.  I think it’s a win on all accounts.  Thank you.
Mr. Pascarella:  Just before you go there may be questions by board members or by any of the objectors.  I just have one quick question.  Where is your property in relation to the Kraus property?
Mr. Kempton:  One house to the water, the next house between Kraus’ and the water.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Any questions for Mr. Kempton up here?  No.  Any questions of Mr. Kempton?  Mrs. Sgambati?

Ms. Leahey:  You can stay there Elaine.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Can I stay there?

Ms. Leahey:  Absolutely you don’t have to keep moving around.

Mrs. Sgambati:  I just have to say that.

Mr. Pascarella:  You can’t testify right now you can only ask him questions.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Yeah.

Mr. Pascarella:  Okay.

Mrs. Sgambati:  You can’t belittle the efforts put into business people there.  This is a business district of Island Heights. We have been there 15 years and we have done an amazing job.

Mr. Bendel:  No question here.

Mrs. Sgambati:  Getting your kids anybody’s children into the schools of the college of their choice because of the portfolio’s take from the Riverview Art School so we are an asset not a detriment.  Maybe one time in 15 years somebody parked, my older you know I have older people…
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Ma’am with all due respect.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mrs. Sgambati
Mrs. Sgambati:  people may have

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Ma’am.

Mr. Pascarella:  Mrs. Sgambati

Mrs. Sgambati:  parked into his driveway
Mr. Pascarella:  Mrs. Sgambati

Mrs. Sgambati:  One time in 15 years.

Ms. Leahey:  Elaine you can only ask questions now you can’t make statements again.
Mrs. Sgambati:  Okay.

Mr. Pascarella:  But we will take that as you have been sworn and continue to be sworn in and we will take that as rebuttal testimony to this witness.  There are no other questions.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  There is no question pending before you Mr. Kempton so you don’t have to

Mr. Kempton:  That wasn’t a question?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  No that was not a question.

(Multiple voices)

Mr. DeVincens:  Can I please call George Thompson back?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  By way of rebuttal?

Mr. DeVincens:  Yes.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright.  Mr. Thompson you are still under oath by way of rebuttal to testimony that was given here.  Mr. DeVincens.

Mr. DeVincens:  Your testimony was that the garage was 2.7 feet from property line, is that correct?

Mr. Thompson:  Yes

Mr. DeVincens: Your other testimony was that if this house was completely taken down you could if you had 8 feet on the south side have zero feet on the northerly property line. 

Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.

Mr. DeVincens:  The testimony is that the garage is now setback some 21 feet, correct.
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.

Mr. DeVincens:  But you could pull that, because of the averaging, to 9.4 feet to the front property line and make it exactly even with the existing house as it is now.

Mr. Thompson:  Yes that’s true.

Mr. DeVincens:  By pulling that garage and putting a second floor on top of that garage at 9.4 feet from the property line, would that have a greater or lesser affect than this proposal has on the northerly property. 

Mr. Thompson:  Oh it would certainly have a greater affect.

Mr. DeVincens:  Go ahead.

Mr. Thompson:  I would just like to address the fire issue.

Mr. DeVincens:  That’s what I was going to get into next, the fire issue.

Mr. Thompson:  I just, I just want to if I can for the board put things into perspective.  The Sgambati house is a two and half story Victorian structure.  Reasonably substantial, I understand all the issues of fire safety certainly concerning having a building with children in it during the day.  But, this also addresses some of Mr. Morrison’s earlier questions.  The garage as it stands would almost fit into a third of this room.  It is only from that wall to here to this line is about 20 feet; I think the garage is 12 feet wide which probably puts it if I count my tiles somewhere in this distance.  The existing side wall of that garage which is roughly 8 feet high by 20 feet long, which is 160 square feet.  So literally if I put my hand height over to that wall that’s the sidewall of the garage facing a two and half story Victorian structure setting back halfway from the building, down the side of that building.  And right now but nonetheless I agree with Mr. Sgambati currently that’s an unrated lightly framed, wood framed structure, which judging from what I have seen elsewhere in town in the eventuality that there was a fire in that structure in its proximity could easily migrate over to Mr. Sgambati’s house which is equally unprotected and is older wood frame two and half story Victorian filled with dry wood that would very easily catch flames.  By doing this addition which adds perhaps another 160 square feet to the sidewall, the second floor addition, one of the reasons that there is no window is because it is going to be completely fire rated.  As the current building code, as the building codes currently require it will have a one hour rating not only from the outside but from the inside.  So I, it’s the same requirement if I had a duplex structure two side by side residences it will have that same rating as if they were right adjacent one another.  In a sense we are increasing the protection for that structure and that school because I know have a one hour fire wall separating this new two story element from Mr. Sgambati’s house and again in perspective how much does it affect, it is still a relatively small structure 20 feet in depth and roughly, less than 20 feet in height.  Fully rated fire proofed that in the eventuality that a fire did occur in this garage or living space above it I know I have an hours rating, which means a burn through of an hour before that’s going to affect Mr. Sgambati’s house or the school or anybody else that might be in that building at the time.  Having said that it’s still in perspective it is a small section that will fully rate that building and I think it is actually an improvement to the well being of anyone occupying the adjacent structure.  There is no way to deny it isn’t because currently when you have these little free standing garages and I have seen them and I don’t think Mr. Kraus is guilty of this but they’re filled with old paint cans and gasoline cans for lawnmowers and everything else that easily ignite and old rags and suddenly you have a fire. Now both that structure is in jeopardy and as well as the school next door and by doing this addition we are essentially protecting both those structures.

Mr. Morrison:  Are you saying that the new north wall will be hour fire rated on both floors?

Mr. Thompson:  Both floors from the inside and the outside.

Mr. Morrison:  Okay, that is something we did not know before. 
Mr. DeVincens: I am standing in the middle of your garage right now, I have a, you heard the testimony to the fact that there is a school on the first floor of the Sgambati building okay?  Does this change anything that already exists on the first floor level at all, the garage is not going to be, the garage is still going to be where it is, is that not correct?    

Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct.
Mr. DeVincens:  So the first floor is not going to be impacted by this at all.
Mr. Thompson:  That’s correct in terms of light and air.
Mr. DeVincens:  And it could be again pulled to 9.4 feet if you had to which would really impact the first floor.  Correct?
Mr. Thompson:  That’s true.
Mr. DeVincens:  And the other question came up concerning value.  In your opinion as an architect who deals with revisions with houses do you think this impacts the neighborhood in any substantially negative way?

Mr. Thompson:  I don’t feel that it does in any way.  I understand that it all changes especially when it’s your neighbor’s house you know it’s a little bit unnerving what anybody is doing next door to you.  But I really think its, there is little to no negative impact. 

Mr. DeVincens:  You heard Mr. Kempton’s testimony that he thinks the values of the property in the neighborhood and the value of this property would be increased.  Do you agree with that?

Mr. Thompson:  I think that all improvements in Island Heights led to (unable to understand) value within neighboring properties.

Mr. DeVincens:  I have no further questions.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Any other questions of Mr. Thompson, anybody here?  Okay.  That’s it then.  Do we any comments or discussion from the board?  Before we have a motion for a resolution on this? Mr. Stanton do you have anything to add to what’s been said here?
Mr. Stanton:  No I basically did what the board members who weren’t here last time and got the stuff from the last meeting and took a ride by to make sure if there was a question I could answer it.  Pretty much the testimony was given, the factual part was there, I will let you guys decide as far as the opinions of the expert but I did not see anything that stood out as unusual one way or another. 

Vice-Chairperson Woods:   And you agree with Mr. O’Donnell’s letter and his comments?

Mr. Stanton:  100%.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:   I thought so.  Mr. DeVincens you indicated that you in addition to what you already submitted to us you wish to make an oral summation?

Mr. DeVincens:  No.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:   Oh, I am sorry.

Mr. DeVincens:  What I was going to do was just comment on those statements and I’ve made those, I will rest written summation that I have presented to you.  I would like to thank everyone on the board for their courtesies their patience I know this has been a long application in terms of over several meetings.

Vice-Chairperson Woods: So your comments have been made in this written thing and you will rest on those.  Do you anything by way of final argument that you want to add?  The pleasure of the board does anyone want to take a crack at the resolution?  Then I will go.

Mr. Bendel:  So we were hoping.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Well first of all I want to say that we certainly understand the concerns of the neighbors to the north.   They have very candidly and very openly expressed their concerns to us.  We appreciate your coming and putting forth the concerns that you do have.  We’ve to go upon the record and testimony that we have before us and we have got to go with the statutes and the law.  And what Mr. DeVincens on behalf of his clients is doing is asking us here to grant a variance under two different reasons.  One is called a c1 variance or a hardship variance and the other is called a c2 variance which is called a flexible or soft c variance.  Mr. DeVincens has prepared a memorandum of law which he submitted to us.  I am sure everyone has had a chance to read it.  I’ve read it and I’ve reviewed the citations that he has cited in his letter.  Based upon that and the testimony we have today as well as the testimony we have had before.  It is my opinion that the applicant has met his burden of proof on both the c1 and the c2 variance.  I will address, go a little bit back to front in regards to the negative and positive criteria.  The negative criteria that we have to find out, is whether or not, again I am going to go back to front, whether the variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good.  I am convinced that this can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good.  I concur with what Mr. Thompson has said I think that this is an improvement to the property both enhancing its value and enhancing its safety factor here.  I go back to the point that this is a Downtown business zone and the uses that can be put forth there as set forth in the ordinance and they have been discussed.  I think you have to look at whole area as one big entity.  We start at the corner with Mr. and Mrs. Kempton’s house, a very nice residential house.  We now have a residence next to it which is in my opinion is going to be improved.  We have a mixed use where both commercial and residential to the north.  Then we have a vacant lot we have a residential the Mayor’s former home.  Then we have what was been turned into, what was a residence into a beauty salon on a variance that we granted and site plan because of the nature of it and a commercial use.  As indicated across the street we have a vacant lot, we have a residence, we have a commercial use that is in transition it was formerly an ice cream parlor but it is my understanding that we may have a professional office going in there.  I think it is nice to have the transition to keep the residential aspect to the southern part of Central Ave.  I think that it enhances the residential across the street and I think that it enhances the yacht club’s property and maintain it as that.  So I don’t think there is any substantial detriment to the public good.  Second prong is that it will not substantially impair the intent and purpose of the zone plan and zoning ordinance.  Mr. DeVincens and Mr. Thompson walked through the testimony with regard to the criteria on the purposes of zoning under section II 45:D, 40:55D-2 and its set forth in his memorandum.  I think a couple of things I specifically wanted to draw on is:  1.   To promote a desirable visual environment through creative development technique and good civic design and arrangement. In this I will have to compliment Mr. Thompson and his clients on what they have decided to do here and the manner in which they have brought this design about.  They haven’t changed the setback at all.  They haven’t moved that garage forward; they haven’t impinged on that area that is open there.  They are only going up two stories instead of two and half.  Theoretically they could have gone up even higher than they are doing.  I think the visual environment as I see in the plans is enhanced and enhances the whole area.  To provide adequate light, air and open space.  I believe that we have adequate light air and open space.  I stood at the corner of that building and looked at the Sgambati’s property and if you visualize where the garage comes in, the real view that I see that you have is to the southeast.  Across your patio and through the window that is on the northeast corner.  You still have that to the river and that’s not going to be impaired by any means.  The view to the south you have the Kempton’s house right behind the Kraus’ house so you don’t have the view that you do to the southeast.  I don’t see any major impact on the view here.  Let me go back to the positive criteria.  With regards to the hardship variance I think we have a preexisting status that we’ve all described and know its here.  It’s an unusual size lot, totally surrounded by developed buildings; we are not in anyway changing the footprint all we’re doing is going up over the garage.  I think the criteria on the hardship has been met.  I think also under the c2 soft variance whereas Mr. DeVincens points out you can take into consideration some different considerations including the personal hardship criteria.  I believe that all the requirements have been met.  I could go on but I want you to know that I have spent a lot of time thinking about this. I have walked around that property see it from every angle, I did not go into your house but I think I can visualize what you could and could not do. I think that the applicant has proved its case and I think we would be arbitrary capricious and unreasonable if we were to deny the application.  So for all the reasons that I set forth and for the reasons set forth in Mr. Thompson’s testimony that I would move that we approve the application.
Mr. Bendel:  Second.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright, can we have a vote?

Ms. Prior:  Yes

Ms. Prior:  Mr. Woods

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Yes

Ms. Prior:  Mr. Bendel

Mr. Bendel:  Yes I think you covered it pretty well I concur with the comments Mr. Woods made.

Ms. Prior:  Ms. Garvin

Ms. Garvin:  Yes I concur with Mr. Woods.

Ms. Prior:  Ms. Kier

Ms. Kier:  Yes.

Ms. Prior:  Ms. Kernaghan

Ms. Kernaghan:  Yes I concur with Mr. Woods.

Ms. Prior: Ms. Leahey

Ms. Leahey:  Yes I concur with Mr. Woods and Mr. Thompson’s testimony and I also agree that it is the least intensive use that could been made of this property given what the code allows and the many uses in the zone.  And to specifically discuss the fire issue if anything the structures that stand now both, yours being older and yours, the garage not having any fire rating it does create a greater fire danger to your school as it stands now and I agree with Mr. Thompson that it would create a greater protection for both you and them to have the one hour fire rating wall to be included in the new structure on both the first and second floors so I vote yes.
Ms. Prior:  Mr. Morrison

Mr. Morrison:  You know I seem to be in the minority of one again.  I don’t know why this happens.  But I have to disagree with our learned Chairman.  Under the c1 application I think Mr. DeVincens in effect acknowledged there was no hardship.  I don’t know what the hardship would be if there was one but it certainly doesn’t come from the shape or size of the land or the topography or anything except that it is a small lot.  And as far as the c2 application is concerned it seems that Mr. DeVincens is saying that when the Kraus’ bought this property the youngest was 7 and now four years later he is 11.  Now they have a space problem well that’s not a hardship personal or otherwise that’s a lack of strategy.  Who would expect anything except that four years after you buy a piece of property your children will be four years older?  I really think that what happened here is that the Kraus’ bought the wrong property and now they are asking us to fix it and I don’t think that is our job.  So obviously I am voting no.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  The vote is 6 to 1 in favor and approval.  Thank you very much.

Mr. DeVincens:  Thank you all very much.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Our next meeting date is 11/4/09 is that correct, is that due to the holiday on the 11th?

Ms. Prior:  Yes

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Everybody take note that the meeting date is 11/4/09 the first Wednesday of November and not the second.

Ms. Kier:  I will not be here.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Yes sir?

Mr. Sgambati:  Excuse me.  Do we have the right to take this (unable to understand)

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Yes you do.  Yes you do.  There is an appeal
Mrs. Sgambati:  We will be doing that.

Vice-Chairperson Woods: There is an appeal provision, Mr. Pascarella you’re the here attorney tonight so I don’t want to react as an attorney but yes you have a certain period of time    for which you can appeal the matter to the Superior Court.  We will prepare what is called a confirmatory resolution which will hopefully be submitted to us by the next meeting
Mr. Pascarella:  It will be.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  next meeting and we will at that time make a formal resolution, memorializing what we have determined here and you are going to have a period of time from that period to file an appeal.
Mr. Sgambati:  You will give us some notice when this is going to happen?

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Our next meeting, that’s what I am telling you, is Nov. 4th.

Mr. Pascarella:  November the 4th is when the resolution gets voted and presumably if the board agrees with the Resolution and it gets voted on then it will be published and your time frame runs from there.  You should really speak to an attorney about the technical aspects of the appeal.
Mr. Sgambati:  Of course.  (Unable to understand)
Vice-Chairperson Woods:  No problem.

Mr. Sgambati:  Thank you for the chance.  Just let us know what we have to do.

Mr. Pascarella:  The next meeting is Nov. 4, 2009.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  November 4th is the meeting you might want to speak

Mr. Sgambati:  I mean do you mail it to us?  Do we come to you?

Mr. Pascarella:  You get it from the board secretary.  It is published; the only form of notification on the resolution adoption is the publication in the paper approved by the board.

Mr. Sgambati:  Thank you.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Do we have anything else to bring for the good and welfare of the board?

Mr. Morrison:  I would like to move that we adjourn.

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Alright so moved.  Do we have a second?

Ms. Garvin:  Second

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  All in favor 

Multiple voices saying aye

Ms. Prior:  I am sorry I did not hear who made the motion

Vice-Chairperson Woods:  Mr. Morrison.

Motion to adjourn meeting at 8:02 pm was made by Mr. Morrison second by Ms. Garvin.  Unanimous Voice Vote.

____________________________________

Respectfully submitted by Wendy J. Prior
